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From: Brown, Kerr <KERR.BROWN@planninginspectorate.gov.uk>
Sent: 12 September 2023 16:34
To: Arron Beecham; Planning Appeals
Subject: FW: Appeal Ref: APP/Y1138/W/22/3313401  - Land at Hartnolls Farm, Tiverton
Attachments: 09-11-23 DCC , Simon Niles.pdf; 09-11-23 Pages from CIL Compliance Statement for Education obo MDDC.pdf; 09-22-23 Pages from CD63 

14_00881_MOUT-DN and S106.pdf

Good aŌernoon 

Please see the e-mail from the agent below 

Kind regards 

Kerr 

From: Sarah Smith <s.smith@pclplanning.co.uk>  
Sent: 12 September 2023 15:13 
To: Brown, Kerr <KERR.BROWN@planninginspectorate.gov.uk> 
Cc: David Seaton <d.seaton@pclplanning.co.uk> 
Subject: FW: Appeal Ref: APP/Y1138/W/22/3313401 - Land at Hartnolls Farm, Tiverton 

Dear Kerr, 

David Seaton has asked that I forward the email below to you. 

Best regards, 

Sarah Smith

PCL PLANNING LTD
13a-15a Old Park Avenue
Exeter
Devon, EX1 3WD
United Kingdom
t: +44 (0)1392 363812 
www.pclplanning.co.uk

IMPORTANT: This message, and any files transmitted with it may be confidential and is intended for the above named only. If you are not the intended recipient please notify the sender immediately or planning@pclplanning.co.uk.  You must not 
disclose or copy the contents to a third party.

Please note that Internet e-mail is not a fully secure communication medium. Any attachments to this e-mail are believed to be virus free, however it is the responsibility of the recipient to make the necessary virus checks. The views expressed in this 
communication are not necessarily those held by PCL Planning Limited.

From: David Seaton <d.seaton@pclplanning.co.uk>  
Sent: Monday, September 11, 2023 1:57 PM 
To: Sarah Smith <s.smith@pclplanning.co.uk>; simon.niles@devon.gov.uk
Cc: tony@aspburyplanning.co.uk; Arron Beecham <abeecham@middevon.gov.uk>; Tristan Peat <tpeat@middevon.gov.uk>; Leanne Buckley-Thomson <lbt@no5.com>; 
appeals@middevon.gov.uk; Robert Williams <RWilliams@cornerstonebarristers.com>; Gerry <Gerry@greendalecourt.com> 
Subject: RE: Appeal Ref: APP/Y1138/W/22/3313401 - Land at Hartnolls Farm, Tiverton 

Tony, 

Since the point stems from your rebuƩal, and presumably the relevant facts were checked prior to issue of that document, it may be expedient for you to reply disclosing 
the relevant documents in order to evidence your adopted posiƟon? 

Kind Regards,  

David Seaton BA (Hons) MRTPI
Managing Director

PCL PLANNING LTD
13a-15a Old Park Avenue
Exeter
EX1 3WD
United Kingdom
t: +44 (0)1392 363812 
m: 07980 908747
www.pclplanning.co.uk

IMPORTANT: This message, and any files transmitted with it may be confidential and is intended for the above named only. If you are not the intended recipient please notify the sender immediately 
or info@pclplanning.co.uk.  You must not disclose or copy the contents to a third party. 

Please note that Internet e-mail is not a fully secure communication medium. Any attachments to this e-mail are believed to be virus free, however it is the responsibility of the recipient to make the 

necessary virus checks. The views expressed in this communication are not necessarily those held by PCL Planning Limited. 

From: Sarah Smith <s.smith@pclplanning.co.uk>  
Sent: Monday, September 11, 2023 1:52 PM 
To: simon.niles@devon.gov.uk
Cc: tony@aspburyplanning.co.uk; Arron Beecham <abeecham@middevon.gov.uk>; Tristan Peat <tpeat@middevon.gov.uk>; Leanne Buckley-Thomson <lbt@no5.com>; 
David Seaton <d.seaton@pclplanning.co.uk>; appeals@middevon.gov.uk
Subject: Appeal Ref: APP/Y1138/W/22/3313401 - Land at Hartnolls Farm, Tiverton 
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Dear Mr Niles, 

Please find aƩached a leƩer from David Seaton in respect of the above appeal.

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

Please take a moment to review the Planning Inspectorate's Privacy Notice which can be accessed by clicking this link.

Please note that the contents of this email and any attachments are privileged and/or confidential and intended solely for the use of the intended recipient. If 
you are not the intended recipient of this email and its attachments, you must take no action based upon them, nor must you copy or show them to anyone. 
Please contact the sender if you believe you have received this email in error and then delete this email from your system.

Recipients should note that e-mail traffic on Planning Inspectorate systems is subject to monitoring, recording and auditing to secure the effective operation of 
the system and for other lawful purposes. The Planning Inspectorate has taken steps to keep this e-mail and any attachments free from viruses. It accepts no 
liability for any loss or damage caused as a result of any virus being passed on. It is the responsibility of the recipient to perform all necessary checks.

The statements expressed in this e-mail are personal and do not necessarily reflect the opinions or policies of the Inspectorate.

DPC:76616c646f72 
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Also at: 9 Western Road, Launceston, Cornwall, PL15 7AR  t: +44 (0)1566 977000
The Keep, Creech Castle, Taunton, TA1 2DX +44 (0)1823 577998

Registered Office: 1A Parliament Square, Parliament Street, Crediton, Devon, EX17 2AW
Registered in England and Wales No. 8300933 VAT No. 923955793

Dear Simon,

I understand that DCC will be appearing at the roundtable session on 

infrastructure matters at this weeks inquiry into our client’s appeal at the above 
site.

I note from Anthony Aspbury’s CIL Regulation 122 compliance statement (copy 
attached) that, at paragraph 2.2.4 he sets out that:

“a new primary school is being constructed imminently close to the appeal 
site”

I presume this is a reference to the primary school provision that was included 

within the approval of a permission granted to the Chettiscombe Trust Estate on 
12/06/2017 (14/00881/MOUT), relevant documents are included at CD63 of the 
inquiry library. 

The appellant wishes to verify the accuracy of the above use of words and, to 

that end, requests clarification of the following points.

Can MDDC and/or DCC please confirm that, pursuant to Schedule 1, Part 2 of 

the S106 agreement dated 09/06/2017 clause 5.2 (extract attached), DCC did 
submit a plan showing the exact proposed boundaries of the School Land to the 

Owner and provide a copy of that plan please?

If that plan was served, whether, pursuant to clause 5.3 the Owner sought an 
alternative plan or the Expert determination procedure was invoked?

PCL Planning Ltd
13a-15a Old Park Avenue
Exeter
Devon
EX1 3WD
United Kingdom
t: +44 (0)1392 363812
www.pclplanning.co.uk

Simon Niles,
Devon County Council Education
County Hall

Topsham
Exeter

EX2 4QD

Your Ref

Our Ref DS/SJS/1883
Date 11th September 2023

LAND AT HARTNOLLS FARM
APPLICATION REFERENCE: 21/01576/MOUT  
APPEAL REFERENCE: APP/Y1138/W/22/3313401 



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

Whether, pursuant to clauses 5.4-5.9 the value of the school site has been 

agreed?

Whether, pursuant to clauses 5.10-5.12 the transfer of the school site has taken 
place?

Bearing in mind the need for this information to inform the inquiry I would be 
grateful for your expedient reply.

Kind regards,

David Seaton, BA (Hons) MRTPI
For PCL Planning Ltd
e: d.seaton@pclplanning.co.uk

Enc. Tony Aspbury CIL Reg 122 compliance statement

S106 extract

c.c. Tony Aspbury

Arron Beecham

Triston Peat

Leanne Buckley-Thomson

mailto:d.seaton@pclplanning.co.uk
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APPEAL BY WADDETON PARK LIMITED

PINS REF.: APP/Y1138/W/22/3313401

CIL REGULATION 122

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT 

IN RESPECT OF S106 CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR EDUCATION

ON BEHALF OF MID DEVON DC



Appeal by Waddeton  Park Limited 1 PINS REF.: APP/Y1138/W/22/3313401

CIL Regulation 122 Compliance  State ment. Antony Peter Aspbury obo Mid Devon DC -the LPA

1.0 Introduction

1.1 This CIL Compliance Statement, prepared in accordance with CIL Regulation 122, on 

behalf of Mid Devon District Council (‘the Council’) as Local Planning Authority, relates to 

the Appeal by Waddeton Park Limited (PINS Ref.: APP/Y1138/W/22/3313401). It is 

concerned with a request quest by Devon County Council as Local Education Authority 

(‘the LEA’) for Section 106 contributions towards education provision.

1.2 The Council considers that the request for an education contribution sought is justified 

and proportionate and in all other respects reasonable and that it complies with 

Regulation 122.

1.3 In coming to this conclusion the Council relies substantively on the evidence provided by 

Devon County Council which is appended to this Statement. An officer of the LEA will be 

available to the Inquiry for the session (presently assumed to be a round-table session) 

to amplify the case for education contributions and to answer any questions that the 

Appellant or the Inspector may have.

1.4 The Council submits that the request for an education contribution is fully consistent 

with and justified by Policy S8 of the MDLP and Paragraph 55 of the NPPF. That is the 

‘policy’ basis of the request. Whilst the other documents relied on by the LEA, in the form 

of, amongst other things, national and local statements of education policy and good 

practice, do not it is acknowledged, form part of the Development Plan, or constitute 

SPD, they are, nevertheless clearly relevant material considerations to which due weight 

should be accorded. They provide both the rationale, underlying justification for the 

request for the contribution and its quantification. They have been published by the LEA 

and are in the public domain therefore. It would be neither procedural appropriate, nor 

practical to include such detail in a development plan policy.  

2.0 Regulation 122 Criteria

2.1 Regulation 122(2) of the Community Infrastructure Regulations 2010 states that a 

planning obligation may only constitute a reason for granting planning permission if the 

obligation is:



Appeal by Waddeton  Park Limited 2 PINS REF.: APP/Y1138/W/22/3313401

CIL Regulation 122 Compliance  State ment. Antony Peter Aspbury obo Mid Devon DC -the LPA

a. necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;

b. directly related to the development; and

c. fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

These criteria are addressed below in turn.

2.2 Ne cessity.

2.2.1 It is axiomatic that housing of the type proposed (i.e., ‘family’ and not specialist housing) 

will generate children of school age. In the absence of any detailed breakdown of the size 

of houses at this stage, it is reasonable for the LEA to apply standard projections for pupil 

yield (primary, secondary and SEN) and that is what has been done in this case.  These 

projections are soundly based on local evidence and this is normal practice throughout 

the country. That the Appeal Development will produce children of school age across the 

spectrum of educational needs is indisputable therefore.  

2.2.2 The evidence provided by the LEA describes existing provision and the ‘capacity’ thereof 

and assesses the impact of the development on that existing provision through the 

projected pupil yield, including the likely impact on the relevant educational 

infrastructure, the need to mitigate that impact and the sums required (again based on a

set of established and evidenced costs).

2.2.3 So far as primary education is concerned, there is a legitimate spatial dimension to the 

required mitigation. Thus, the objective of making primary education provision that is 

accessible by parents and children (on foot and by bicycle) (i.e., within 2-miles), which is 

embodied in national and local education policy and practice, and is also consistent with 

health and wellbeing policy and with the principles of sustainability, is clearly a sound, 

well-established and proper one in planning terms. In this context, the LEA evidence 

shows that the nearest primary schools (within the 2 -mile radius) are either already at 

capacity or are projected to do so in the near future and that those particular schools 

cannot, for a variety of reasons, mainly related to the limitations of their sites, be 

extended. Whilst there may be spare capacity in primary schools in Tiverton beyond the 

2-mile radius, this capacity is dispersed and involves parent/pupil journeys (in some 

cases s ignificantly) beyond convenient walking/cycling distance. 



Appeal by Waddeton  Park Limited 3 PINS REF.: APP/Y1138/W/22/3313401

CIL Regulation 122 Compliance  State ment. Antony Peter Aspbury obo Mid Devon DC -the LPA

This is likely to engage the need for dedicated school transport provision and/ or to 

involve increased reliance by parents on the private motor car. Moreover, capacity at 

these more distant schools is likely to be taken up over time by development within their 

catchments.

2.2.4 Against this background, and in the knowledge that a new primary school is being 

constructed imminently close to the Appeal Site (and certainly within the 2 -mile radius), 

it is wholly reasonable for LEA to propose that the required additional primary school 

places are provided by by contributing towards the delivery of that school. This is clearly 

a cost-effective solution for all parties and an efficient use of public (education) 

resources. It also affords young children from the same ‘community’ (i.e., the Appeal 

Development) to attend the same school and constitutes a significant additional social 

benefit, therefore.

2.2.5 Accordingly, the LEA has not treated the Appeal site as a component of the TEUE. The 

relationship to the TEUE and the Local Plan Policies that relate to it, is entirely incidental. 

The fact that the new primary school is actually provided initially under the TEUE policies 

and funded by the development therein is neither here nor there. It is not disputed, 

indeed is relied on, by the Appellant that there will be interactions with the other TEUE 

infrastructure, including the neighbourhood centre, the employment provision and 

recreational and leisure facilities. Moreover, sending pupils to the school there maximises 

the opportunities for shared journeys. 

2.26 These are all proper planning considerations.

2 . 3 Re lationship to the development.

2.3.1 It is clear from the evidence statement provided by the LEA that the requested 

contribution is directly related to the development. The basis of the calculation and the 

statistical relationship to pupil yield is comprehensively explained and justified. The LEA 

is manifestly not seeking contributions unrelated to the proposed development itself.



Appeal by Waddeton  Park Limited 4 PINS REF.: APP/Y1138/W/22/3313401

CIL Regulation 122 Compliance  State ment. Antony Peter Aspbury obo Mid Devon DC -the LPA

2 . 4 Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

2.4.1 Once again, the Local Planning Authority is satisfied that, on the evidence provided by 

the LEA, the education contributions sought are justified and proportionate and fairly and 

reasonably relate in scale and kind to the development.

2.4.2 The education contribution is now the only additional S106 Obligation sought by the LPA 

(other than the affordable housing contribution, which is not disputed ). The Appellant is 

not, therefore in the situation where it is faced with a large suite of contributions which 

are economically onerous. The Obligation burden taken as a whole is not burdensome 

and falls within the ambit of liabilities that could have been reasonably anticipated by the 

Appellant.

3.0 CONCLUSION

3.1 In the submission of the Local Planning Authority, the requested educational 

contribution is justified and accords with terms of Regulation 122. 












